MIAMIDADE

Memorandum

From: Susanne M. Torriente

Date: September 4, 2007
To: Victor M. Diaz, Chairman _
Charter Review Task F ) W—

Assistant County

Subject: Information Package for Charter Review Task Force — Issue 5

At its August 1, 2007 meeting, the Charter Review Task Force (CRTF) approved a list of issues, in
priority order, for study during this process.

Per your direction, research on Issue 5, the Study of Initiative, Referendum, Petition & Recalls has
been performed. Specifically, staff has conducted general research regarding the use of initiatives and
recalls in the United States. The attached presentation includes information regarding the history and
major pros and cons of these processes, as well as specific strategies used by communities to improve
them. Additionally, we have attached detailed findings regarding provisions for initiative and recall in
seven Florida counties and thirteen large counties nationwide.

| would like to thank Amy Horton-Tavera, Paul Mauriello, Cara Tuzeo, John Murphey and Tracie
Auguste for pulling this data together. Staff will continue to research this issue, as well as the other
issues approved by the Task Force.

c Charter Review Task Force Merribers and Staff
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Overview of Direct Democracy Mechanisms

Who initiates Electorate Board of County
the action? Commissioners
: Initiative: l
Code Charter
What action is Recall of an Amendment Amendment
proposed? eIeCted Off|C|aI Charter (In Miami-Dade, amendments (Code Amendments do not require a
proposing a new law are referendum)
Amendment called initiatory ; amendments
repealing an ordinance are
referendary )
How is the
action Petition Drive [—) BCC Resolution BCC Resolution
forwarded to
voters?
How do voters
approve or Recall Election Referendum
disapprove the
action?

Terminology and procedures may vary somewhat by jurisdiction. Chart reflects the most common use of the terms initiative, recall and
referendum.

In some jurisdictions, the legislative body may adopt Code amendments proposed by initiative in lieu of placing them on the ballot.



A Brief History of Referenda and Initiatives

The notion of direct lawmaking by the people dates back
to colonial times, when laws were often crafted through
town hall meetings.

During the 18™" century, some colonies and later states
provided for “binding representation” whereby legislators
were required to vote in accordance with majority wishes.

The modern referendum process developed during the 19t
century, when many states required popular approval of
state constitutions and some states began to require
referenda to incorporate municipalities, establish schools,
or incur debit.

The citizen initiative process was championed by the
Populist Party in the late 19t century and in 1898 South
Dakota became the first state to establish an initiative
process.



The Initiative Process Today

There Is no national initiative process.

As of 2002, 21 states provided for statutory
INnitiative and 18 states (including Florida)
provided for state constitutional initiative.
According to a survey conducted in 2001 by
the International City/County Management
Association, 58% of responding municipalities
had initiative provisions.



Initiative: Major Pros and Cons

e Today’s proponents of the initiative process argue that:

— The initiative is a direct form of democracy and provides an
mechanism by which the people can petition their
government for redress of grievances.

— The initiative provides a necessary tool for the people when
the legislature is corrupt or unresponsive.
e |nitiative critics argue that:

— The initiative process undermines representative democracy
and lacks its traits of deliberative debate and compromise.

— Voters frequently lack the information necessary to make
educated decisions.

— Results are frequently unduly influenced by wealthy special
Interests.



Benchmarking Highlights - Initiative

Staff conducted benchmarking research on the initiative process
In 7 Florida counties and 13 large national counties. Our findings
reflect the provisions of the respective county charters or, for
non-charter counties, the county code.

All 7 Florida counties provide for an initiative process. 11 of the
13 national counties also allow initiatives.

All Florida counties require signatures from between 7% and 10%
of registered voters. Three Florida counties (including Miami-
Dade) place restrictions on the number of signatures that can
come from a geographic area.

Of the national counties, 3 base signature requirements on the
number of registered voters; requirements range from 5 to 20% of
voters. Eight counties base signature requirements on the
number of voters participating in the last General Election.
Requirements range from 8% to 20% of voters.

Of the Florida counties, 5 restrict the time frame for signature
gathering. In 4 of these counties, the limit is 180 days; in Miami-
Dade County the limit is 60 days.

Many of the national counties limit the time frame for signature
gathering; limits range from 90 days to 1 year.



Benchmarking Highlights — Initiative cont.

Only two of the 20 counties surveyed (Miami-Dade and Broward)
Impose a specific time requirement within which a referendum
must be called; most require the referendum to be held at the next
countywide election.

Many counties impose a waiting period between the time a
petition is verified and when the referendum is held; waiting
periods range from 30 to 135 days.

Many counties specifically provide that the council may adopt the
proposed legislation in lieu of calling a referendum (generally for
code amendments only).

We identified three counties (including Miami-Dade) that restrict
the council’s authority to modify legislation approved by
referendum within a certain time period. The California counties
surveyed provide that legislation proposed by initiative, but
enacted by the council, may only be overturned by popular vote.

Three of the 7 Florida counties (Broward, Orange and Pinellas)
Impose restrictions on the subject matter of initiatives, such as
budget issues, employee compensation, and functioning of the
courts or constitutional officers.

We identified 2 national counties with similar subject matter
restrictions.



The Initiative Process:

Issues and Community Responses

Issues are frequently expressed concerns; community responses are policies that
have been implemented by governments and/or proposed by various
organizations or community groups

Issue

Community Responses:

The Initiative process lacks the deliberation,
debate and compromise characteristic of
representative democracy

Allow for an advisory initiative process (Straw ballot)

Provide for an indirect initiative process (After
proponents gather required signatures, initiative is
referred to the council, which may enact, defeat or
amend the measure.)

Require public hearings on initiative proposals

Allow councils to place alternative proposals on the
ballot

Require sunset provisions on initiative measures

Voters often lack adequate and transparent
information needed to make educated
decisions

Provide all voters with user-friendly information on
initiative measures, including arguments in favor of
and against the proposed measure

Require fiscal impact statements on ballot

Require public hearings on initiative proposals

Provide voters with a list of individuals and
organizations endorsing or opposing initiative
measures

10



The Initiative Process:
Issues and Community Responses cont.

Issue

Community Responses:

The Initiative process is often a tool of special
interests whose supporters and motives may
not be known

Require financial disclosure by individuals or
organizations contributing money over a threshold
amount

Require signature gatherers to file statements of
organization

Make financial disclosure requirements for initiative
campaigns consistent with requirements for
candidates for elected office

Organizing a successful petition drive is costly,
so only wealthy interests have access to the
process

Lower signature requirements for all-volunteer
campaigns

Provide drafting assistance to proponents

Prohibit the use of public funds or resources to support
Oor oppose an initiative measure

The signature gathering process is vulnerable
to fraud

Require signature gatherers to file statements of
organization

Prohibit payment in exchange for signatures

Require signature gatherers to disclose whether they
are paid

Institute criminal penalties for fraud or
misrepresentation

11



The Initiative Process: The Initiative Process:
Issues and Community Responses cont.

Issue

Community Responses:

Some matters, such as budgetary and
employee issues, or issues surrounding the
court system, should not be subject to a
popular vote

Prohibit or restrict (e.g. though supermajority
provisions) initiatives on certain subjects

Initiatives can create unfunded mandates for
governments

Prohibit or restrict (e.g. though supermajority
provisions) initiatives that appropriate revenue or
change fees

Require fiscal impact statements on ballot

Initiative proponents elect to amend the
charter rather than code to prevent the
council from amending or repealing the
proposal

Limit the council's authority to amend legislation
approved by initiative

Lengthy legal battles can impede the initiative
process

Establish a review process and opportunity for public
challenge of technical matters

Impose time limits on technical challenges

12



A Brief History of Recall

A Constitutional recall provision was considered
but ultimately rejected by the Founding Fathers.

The Populist and Socialist Labor parties urged
states and cities to adopt the recall in the late
19th century.

In 1903, Los Angeles became the first major city to
approve the recall in its charter.

Oregon was the first state to adopt the recall in
1908.

13



The Recall Process Today

At least thirty-six states permit the recall of local
officials. Most recall states, including Florida, have
established specific recall requirements and
procedures.

According to research conducted in 2001 by the
International City/County Management
Association, 61% of U.S. counties and cities have a
recall process. From 1996 to 2001, recall elections
took place in almost 10% of cities.

Local recalls are more prevalent in smaller cities
and school boards than in large cities and counties.

The “success rate” for recall elections is under one-
third at the local level.

There is no national recall process.

14



Recall: Major Pros and Cons

e Today’s proponents of the recall process argue

that:

— It provides for continuous accountability of elected officials

— The threat of recall helps provide a check against undue
iInfluence by special interests

— Recall provides a “safety valve” for intense opposition and is a
sensible alternative to impeachment

e Recall critics argue that:

— The recall process undermines basic principles of
representative democracy and constrains the independence
of legislators

— Recall elections can be unduly influenced by wealthy special
interests

— Recall elections can be polarizing and confusing to voters

— Recall makes elective office less appealing to potential
candidates

15



Benchmarking Highlights - Recall

Staff conducted benchmarking research on the recall process in 7
Florida counties and 13 large national counties. Our findings reflect the
provisions of the respective county charters or, for non-charter counties,
the county code.

In general, recall procedures tend to be regulated by state law.

All 7 Florida counties provide for recall of local elected officials. Eight of
the 13 national counties provide for recall.

In 6 of 7 Florida counties, recall petitions must be signed by 5% of
registered voters for large jurisdictions. In Miami-Dade County, the
signatures of 4% of registered voters are required.

Nationally, signature requirements vary and may be based on the
number of registered voters or on the number of votes cast in the
previous general election. In either case requirements range from 10 to
25%.

Florida Statute 100.361 provides that officials may be recalled for
“malfeasance; misfeasance; neglect of duty; drunkenness;
incompetence; permanent |nab|I|ty to perform off|C|aI dutles or
conviction of a felony involving moral turpitude.”

We identified 1 national county (Wayne, MI) that places restrictions on
the reasons for recall.
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The Recall Process: Issues and Community Responses

Issues are frequently expressed concerns; community responses are policies that have
been implemented by governments and/or proposed by various organizations or
community groups

Issue

Community Responses:

Some recall campaigns are groundless or
constitute "sour grapes"

Restrict permissable reasons for recall

Restrict the time frame within which a recall can be
undertaken

Impose high signature requirements

The recall process is often a tool of special
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

Make financial disclosure requirements for recall
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

Recall elections can be polarizing and
confusing to voters

Require public hearings and/or preliminary trial by
citizen jury

Require "cooling off" period prior to a recall election
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